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AN INVESTIGATION INTO THE LICENSING
OF THE KNIGHT STREET PUB

1. INTRODUCTION

On May 10, 1988 the Ministrzry of Labour 2and Consumer
Affairs issued a "D" Neighbourhood Public Lidence to
V;A. Boyd Ltd., the owner of the Knight Streetv,Pub.
Valarie Ann McRobbie is the sole shareholder of V.A. Bovyd
Lcd, Nn that same davy, the Honourable Lyvall Hanson,
Minister of Labour and Consumer Affairs, received
all=2aqations that the referendum for the Knight Street Pub
conducted by Delta Media Services Ltd., between April 21
and May 22, 1987, had been impbrooerly conducted. The
Minister then instructed his depouty, Mr. Lee Doney, to

investigate the alleqations thoroughly.

Oon June 6, 1988, Mr. Doney submitted the findings of his
investigation to the Minister. The report, "An

Investigation into the Referendum for the Knight Street

‘Pub", was made public the same day.



On May 14, 1988, the Ombudsman's office had received a

cooy of a lette of complaint sent to the Minister

"

concerning the referendum. On May 20, 1988, Mr. Doney had
contacted the Ombudsman, Mr. Stephen Owen, and invited the
Ombudsman to review the Ministzy's investigation which was
currently underway. Subsegquent to the release of the
report, the oflice received additional complaints about

the referendum i:self ‘and also about the Ministry's

investigation.

An Ombudsman Officer was present in Mr. Hanson's office
the morning of June 6, 1938 when Mr. Doney briefed the
Minister oh the report. Also oresent wer2 the Executive
Assistant to the Ministsr, a lawyer from the Legal
Services 8ranch of the Ministry of Attornev General, the
Deputy Minister, and Mr. Bert Hick, the General Manager of
the Liguor Control and Licensing Branch. The Ombudsman

commenced a formal investigation on that day.




2.PROCESS OF OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATION

The Ombudsman investigation began with a review of the

Ministry's revoor=. Documents (i.e. the ballots and the

referendum rébort, with aopendices) submitted to the
Miaistcry by Delta Media Sérvices Ltd. (DMS) were obtained
as was material dirsctly from DMS. After these documents
nad been examined in depth, intarviews were conducted with
peovle whom were thought to hnave relevant information.
The focus was the administrative acts and/or omissions of
the Ministrzry both in tas liceasing orocess of the Knight
Streetz Pub and in the course 0f its internal investigakion
of complaints alleging improprieties in the conduct of the
teferendum. However, in order to coasider the Ministrvy's
rale, it was necessarvy to raview not onlv the Ministry's

actions but also the conduct of the referendum itself.

Many 1individuals inside and outside of government have
been interviewed in the éourse of this investigation. TFor
the most parkt, the information taken from those
interviewed is not contradictory. Where contradictions do
occur, they are pointed out in this report. All
information upon which conclusions and recommendations are

based is set out 1in this report. Those who could be



adversely affected by tais r2vort, including the owner of
the pub, the owner and former employees of DMS and several
past and ovresent government officials have been given an
ooportunity to review and make representations on a
confidential draft. All reoresentations ra2ceived were

carefully considered before the report was finalized.

On July 13, 1988, the Ombudsman, by letter, notified the
Honourable Lyall Hanson of certain information which had
come to his attention during the course of the
investigation which r2flected on the wvalidity of the
ceferendum result. No recommendation was made at tnat
time by the Ombudsman as the investigation was still

underway. Matters of an apvarent criminal nature were

also referred to the Ministry of Attorney General and the

R.C.M.P. for further investigation. Subsequently, all
original material held by this office was requested by,

and handed over to, the R.C.M.P.

This report deals with widesoread concern over the
fairness of government licensing and the public voting
process. These are not matters of political policy but
rather go to the - heart of fair and accountable
administrative practices. Because of their importance,

this report is being made public at this time under




saction 30(2) of the Ombudsman Act. It is vossible that

furthe information may vyvet come to light which 1is

"

-

relevant to these findings. If warranted, an addendum to

tais rezvort will be issued in kthe future.

3. THE LICENSING PROCESS

Section 5(a) of the Ligquor Controsl and Licensina Act

authorizes the general manager of the Liquor Control and
Licensing 3ranch to "grant, transfar, susvend or cancel
licences as orovided by this Act and the regulations”.
Section 5(f) enables the general manager to authorize
officials to issue licences. Regqulation 17(4)(i) of the
Liquor Control and Licensing Requlations reguiress that a
referendum or petition be hneld within a 6 block or 1/2
mile <rcadius of the ©proposed establishment before a
neighbourhood pub licence can be issued. Pursuant to an
agreement between the Branch and the City of Vancouver,
referendums in that city are within a 2000 foot radius of
the proposed site. Section 10(3.1) of the Act states that
"a referendum may be carried out in a manner required by
the gqeneral manager"” and section 10(3) makes it clear that

60% of the residents must favour qranting the licence for

the application to proceed.



The licensing process for a neighbourhood pub is a lengthy
one. The first stage involves an applicant submitting the
prooosed site to the Branch £for approval. Three things
are reguired: (1) written ewvidence that the apolicant
owns a valid interest in the prooerty (e.q. a deed, lease,
option or interim agreement); (2) a letter from municipal
or regional authorities indicating theyvy are orepared to
consider a neighbou:hood pub at that location {(since the
fall of 1987, a formal rasolution of municipal council has
bean requirad); and (3) a document obtained from the
3ranch which 1s known as a "Statement of Prooosed 9Ownerzrs"
(rhis identifies the avplicants and their resvective

dagrees of ownershin).

The local inspector then does a site inspection and
prepares a report for the deputy general manager €for
licensing. He then must take 1into consideration the
sections of the Requlations relevant to the licensina of a

neiqbbouchood pub, as follows:

5(4) ...the gqeneral manager .shall «consider the

following factors in making his decision:
(a) the proposed location of the establishment;

(b) the proximity of the establishment to other
social facilities and public buildings;

(c) the number of licensed establishments within
a reasonable distance of the proposed
location;




(d) the potential aconomic viability of the
proposal;

(e) the need of ‘the local community £for the
proposed establishment;:; and

(€) tratiic, noise and parking factors,
apoearance and municipal zonina.

Section 17(4)

() No licensed neighbourhood opublic house shall
be located within one mile of another
licensed neighbourhood public  house or
licensed hotel, except as approved by the
general manaaqer:

(g) No licensed neighbourhood public house shall
be located within one-half mile of a main or
secondary highwav, excep: as approved by the
general manager.

If the decision on the aoplication is Ffavourable., the
Branch will grant pre-~clearance. This 1is not a quarantee
that a licence will subsequently be issued; rather, it is
an indication that the woproposed site meets the basic

requirements of the Branch. If pre-clearance is refused

by the Branch, the applicant may appeal to the Minister

under section 32(2) of the Act.

If pre-clearance is granted, the applicant then proceeds
to the next stage of the process which is third-party
approval. Approval of local authorities (whether

municipal or regional) must be obtained, Then the



apolicant must arrange £or an independent firm to conduct
a refarendum of the residents within a one-half mile
radius of the ©proposed site. Before the official
referendum, the applicant may conduct his own survevy or
pra-canvass of the ar2a to get an indication of the extent

of community supvort.

I¢ the referendum results indicate that at least 50% of
those voting are in favour of the proposed pub, and if the
3ranch aporoves the results, then the major requiresments
of the licensing process have been successfully met. The
applicant must taen obtain aporoval from health and fire
authorities of his detailed floor plans., He then submits
the Eloor' plans tor the deouty general manager £for
licensing, whose approval is the authoritvy for the

applicant to commence construction.

This investigation has focused on the first two stages of
the licensing process: {1) apnlication for pre-clearance,

and (2) referendum of the residents.




4. PRE-CLEARANCE (November 1986 -~ January 1987)

On -September 9, 1986, McRobbie wrote the Branch to apply

for a neighbourhood pub licence. At this time, Allan

Gould was the General Manager and Don AaAndersen was the

Deputy General Manager. She enclosed with her lekter Ehe

following: (1) statement of prooosed’owners which showed

that McRobbie would own 100% of the pub; (2) a letter from

Mr. Peter Toigo, President of Whitbury‘Holdinqs. showing

intent ko 1lease the site at 7289 Knight Sktreet to

“cRobbie; and (3) a letter from the Permits and Licences

Deparcrtment of the City of Vancouver that the Director of

Planning may approve a neighbourhood public house (NPH).

The site was then ianspected by one of the Ministry's local

inspectors. He = evaluated the site against the

requirements of section 5(4) of the regqulations. He noted

that there was a licensed establishment, The Blue Boy

Hotel, located within a one-mile radius of the proposed

site. He also commented: "There is 1little need in the

community for a NPH. This 1s an old4d established

residential area. The residents, particulacrly those in

the immediate area will in all probability object."™ The

inspector noted that both Knigqht Street and East 57th
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Avenue wera very busy during rush hour and that noise

might be 3 oroblem to local residents.

The iaspector's report also identified the fact that
anotner apolication within the one-mile radius of the
prooosed Xnignt Straet Pub site had been raceived by the
Branch ©prior to McRobbie's. Ms. Suzan Kochen had
submittéd an application on Aauqust 21, 1986 for a NPY to
be located at 6940/42 Victoria'brive (the corner of East
54th and Victoria Drive). The Inspector's report noted

tha:- another pub, The Molly Hogan at 1445 =gast 4lst

Avenue, was 7/3 of a mile away from Xochen's propnsed
site. Kochen's proodsed site was also 3/4 mile a#ay from
a NPH pre-clearance at 2615 E. 49th, which had been
extended until November 7, 1986, and 7/8 mile €rom a
pre-clearance refusal which was under apveal at S.E.
Marine and Gladstone. The' Inspector commented in his
reoort on the Kéchén application that "...the need for
thié Eacility by the 1local community would appear to be
warrented (sic) providing" the applications at 2615 E.
49th and S.E. Marine and Gladstone did not go ahead. The
fact that the Molly Hoqan was Jjust within a one-mile
radius 6E Kochen's Site did not apmear to the Inspector to

be a reason for reEusinq Rochen's apolication. At that




time, the 3ranch's oractice was to process avolications on
a "first come - first sarved" basis. Moreover, it was not
unusual £or several apolications for pre—=clearance within

one mile of each other to proceed simultaneously.

On November 12, 1986, McRobbie wrote Mr. Don andersen, the

then Depruty General Manager of Licensing, as follows:

Re: Pub Apolication
S7¢th and Xnight Street

I have been informed by 2Peter Toigo Jr. of Whitbury
#oldings 1Inc. that he has communicated with vyou
regardianag the above-mentioned apelication.

I was disturbed and surprized (sic) to learn that
there was a possibility that my apolication could be
turned down due to the £fact that another pub site
(54th and Victoria Drive) was already being given
consideration, whose location is .66 miles from my
site.

McRobbie went on to gquote section 17(4)(f) of the
Regulations  and then listed 4 sets of licensed
establishments which were 1less than one mile apart.
McRobbie's penultimate sentence was "...further, I
understand that the 54th & Victoria 1location was turned

down previously due to inadequate parking, which is not a

factor with the S7th & Knight location".

il
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On December 11, 1986, Andersen wrote two letters: one to

McRoobie and one to Kochen. Andersen wrote to Kochen that

he had some problems with her application. He mentioned

“hat the 3rancn had two ore-clearance approvals within one
mile of her site. He wWent on to say that he did "feel the
site on Mazine Drive will go anead". He also included the
statement fmmﬁ McRobbie's November 12 letter that "This

particular sita was refused previously because of lack of

parking”.

In his December 11, 1986 lekter to McRobbie, Andersen
wrote that "This particular site...{i.e. the Kochen
site]...did have some positive attributes, but recent
negative attributes are such that it will not gqo ahead,
and tﬁérefore your site has potential." He went on to say

that:

...the matter was discussed with Mr., Toiqo vyesterday
and cleared away some obstacles that I am working on
at the present time. I would advise you I have some
positive feeling toward it but I will not be able to
advise you immediately on its acceotability but should

be able to do so within a couvmle of weeks.

While it is difficult to discern the exact meaning of

every sentence in these two letters, the purport is

clear: McRobbie's application was to proceed whiie

Kochen's was not.




On Jaauary 18, 1987, aAndersen wrote Xochen and formally
refused  her application for 9©ore-clearance for the

following resasons:

A3 I indicated to you, the prime proolem I have with
tais avoplication is that it is within one mile of one
aporoved neighbourhood ©public house which I feel
confident will provably pass the poll...(i.e. the site
at S.E. Marine and Gladstone),...as well as one mile
of an existing neighbourhood public house, The Molly
Bogan. Ther2 is also the site at 2615 E. 49th Avenue.
Regulartion 17(4)(f) states that only on an exception
basis should a neighbourhooé public house be located
within one mile of an existing "D" <c¢lass licensed
astablishment and T consider the one on Marine Drive
will serve the same area as you would.
No information coancerning the statutory right of aopeal
was gqiven to the applicant in the letter, Xochen was
given information concezning her apveal rights over the
telepnone by Andersen but after discussing her application
with him, Kochen has stated that she felt it would be

futile to appeal.

Follow~up of the other applications referred to by

Andersen has revealed the following:

(1) Pre-clearance for the 2615 E. 49th Street site

was first granted in 1983. After innumerable
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extensions, Vancouver City Council on
Februazy 25, 1988 decided it was not in favour of

a neighbourhood pub at this site;

(2) on April 12, 1983, the general manager of the
Branch refused to extend pre—clearancé and the

application at 2615 East 49th was terminated;

(3) pre-clearance was qranted on appeal £for the site

rat S.E. Marine and Gladstone on October 6, 1935;

and

(4) rthe 8ranch terminatsasd the S.E=. Marine and
Cladstone application on March 19, 1987 because
less than ©80% of <those who wvnted 1in the

referendum were in favour of a NPH at that site.

On January 8, 1987, Andersen wrote McRobbie that
pre-clearance was qivgn to her apolication. This was a
discretionary decision on his part as Requlation 17(4)(E€)
states that no licensed NPH shall be loéated within 1 mile
of another NPH or ;@cehsed hotel, except as approved by
the general manager. The Blue Boy Hotel, which holds two

"A" licences representing 342 licensed seats, was within a




mile of McRobobie's prooosed site. Wwhile this may have
seen an aporopriate exercise of discretion, no reason was
given oy Andersen to explain his decision; indeed, the
fact that It wés a discretionary decision was not
mentioned. A copy of Andersen's letter, on which was
entered the handwritten note signed by Andersen: "Peter,

T am pleased to enter this aporoval. Kind resgards”", was

sent to Mr. Toigo. A blind copy was sent to the Deputy

Minister.

when interviewed, Andersen told us that he had known Toigo
Eor some twenty ‘Years. On October 15, 1985 Andersen
recalled receiving a telepnhone call from Toigo.
Andersen's recollection was that Toigo was gquite irate
about thne fact thnat pre-clearance had not been granted to
McRobbie. Toigo has confirmed that he did have a shouting
match over the telephone with - Andersen. Toigo's
recollection was that Andersen had verbally indicated
shortly after McRobbie's application had been received
that he did not anticipate any problems with it. When
some time had passed and no word of pre-clearance had been
received by McRobbie, Toigo telephoned Andersen. When
Andersen mentioned a “"horrendous problem” (the Kochen

application), Toigqo said that he "gave Andersen hell”

p
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because he (Toigo) had alre2ady purchased the provoerty at

East 57th and Xaight.

Andersen's €irst recollection was that Toiqo threatened he
would have Andersen fired if pre-clearance were not
granted. He has subsegquently quoted Toigo as saving, "You
will be sorry, vou have turned me down once too often."

Andersen maintained that this threat did not influence him
in any way as he had dealt with Toigo in different
capacities for many vyvears and this was just Toigo's
manner. However, Andersen did speak to the then General
Manager, Allan Gould, about Toigo's outdurst. Gould told
the Ombudsman's office that he subsequently passed on his

concerans about Toigo to Mr. David Poole, Principal

Secretary to the Premier.

In these <circumstances, it is <concluded that the
pre-clearance practices of the Branch were applied in an
unfair manner as between Kochen and McRobbie, It 1is
recommended that Branch practices for considering
competing applications’ ' within a wparticular area be
clarified, made known to the avplicants and consistently
applied. It should be noted that a directive from the

General Manager ' dated - June 15, 1987 = addresses this




concern, but continues to leave discrestion wWith him to

vary from the stat=a2d procedurss.

5.

[0}
w
19

THE REF NDUM

Aooroval of Delta Media Services, Ltd. (DMS)

(January-February 1987)

Once pre-clearance has been granted, the applicant
must arrange £or an indevendent firm to conduct a
referencum. The Eirm selected by the apolicant must
be approved Dby the 3ranch. While thers is no
2xclusive list of cowmpanies approved by the Branch,
since at least 1979 the Branch has maintained a list
of Eirms which have done surveys acceptable to the
Branch. It follows that if an applicant selects a
firm from the list, aporoval from the Branch would be
virtually automatic. IE the aoplicant selects a firm
which has not previously done a referendum, then
(according to a Branch circular dated July 3, 1979)
the‘ Branch would "iike to know something about the
Eirm, its expertise and reputation, as well as an
outline Edt the method they Dbpropose to wuse in

conducting the survey"., This 1979 circular contains a

list of "aporoved companies". DMS is not on the list.

R



Rk ik

The first meation in the Ministry's Knight Street Pub
file of DMS is a letter from Mr. Charles Giordano,
President of DMS, dated March 26, 1987 ¢to Don

Andersen. In it, Giordano wrote that:

My company, Delta Media Services Ltd. will be

conducting the neighbourhood survey (plebiscite)
for the above noted application beginning April

21, 1987,
By what process did the Branch arprove DMS to conduct
the referendum? The attempt of this investigation to
discover the answer to this seemingly simple question

resulted in the following information:

(1) When Giordano was interviewed, he stated that in
1981, he wrote Andersen a short letter about his
company as application to be put on the Branch's
list of companies aporoved to conduct
referendums. Giordano stated that his company
was put on the list and then did one referendum
for a Richmond apolicant. ‘He then took himself
off the list. He stated that he had atﬁemoted to
have his company put backﬁ on the list but was
refused because his company ywasl a public

relatioqs €icm. Giordano said he appealed in




(2)

early 1987 by way of a letter to Bert Hick, the
General Manager, who subsequenﬁly telephoned
Giordano to inter&iew him.wfés;a result of this
process, his company was adain inciuded on the

list of avoroved firms.

A memorandum on the Ministry file(from Bert Hick,

General Manager, to the Execut ve Assistant to

~the Minister, dated May 20, 1988 reads as follows:

Further to our conversation with the

Minister, her= is some confidential
background, for his info onlv, on Delta Media.

1980 Delta Media Services went oﬁ list to do
refarendums.

1980 Company did referendum for apol&catlon
for a pub at...(won referendum).

1980 Company raquested to go of € list
because the princivle (sic) was
teaching . journalism full-time at
Rwantlan College. Has taught full-time
from 1974-1986.

1985 Company was requested to do a
referendum and tried to get back on the
list. Was told by Denuty General
Manager, Mr. Andersen that he could not
as he was not putting "any PR type”"
firms on the list. This was relayed to
me by Mr. Giordano.

Spring Delta Media Services request to be put
1987 back on the list as Mr. Giordano was
teaching part-time now. He had left



(3)

(4)

(5)

- 20 -~

the college in the summer of 1986 to work on
the Premier's leadership campaign and
election.

I discussed the request with Don Andersen who

did not voice any strong objections. It was
my view that since he had previous experience
in a referendum, that other communications
consulting firms were on the 1list and his
exverience with voting and ballot processes,
that there was no reason why he could not be
put on the list,

In the first interview with Bert Hick, he stated

that his information for this 'Dart of the memo

had been obtained from Giordano. Hick had not
attempted to confirm through efforts of his own
or Ministry staff  the accuracy of the

information.

In the 1interview with Don Andersen, he stated

that at no time had Bert Hick discussed the

approval of DMS with him. Andersen maintained

that he was simply inférmed by Hick that DMS was

going to be included on the list.

In thé seCond interview with Bert Hick, he stated

thaﬁ he had discussed the addition of DMS to the

approved list with Andersen who strongly objected

¥

’becéusév he considered ‘DMS to be a "PR" firm.
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(6)

After this discussion Hick was of a mind not to
aporove DMS, Subséquently, Hick had received a
teleohone <call from - Poole. After the usual
pleasantries were exchanged, Poole brought the
tooic around to DMS and stated, "There won't be
any problem -with DMS going on the 1list, WILL
THERE?" (Emphasis indicated by Hick). Hick
maintained that it was clear to him that the
senior public servant in the province wanted DMS

to be included on the Branch's list of aporoved

 companies. Following this call, Hick gave

immediate aporoval for the acceptance of DMS.

In the interview with Poole, he stated that he

telephoned Hick after he (Poole) had received a
telephone call from Toigo. Poole said that Toigo
called him to bring to Poole's attention the fact
that Giordano was out of work. Poole asked Hick
whether there would be any problem with DMS going

on the list, Poole stated that he did not issue

‘"a directive to Hick that DMS should be put on the

Branch's approved list, and that had he done so.,

‘such a call would have constituted interference

~on the part of his office. Rather, Poole's call
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was merely a show of support for a "good gquy”, an
"on-side"™ guy, which Poole explained meant a
Social Credit supporter. Poole acknowledged that
he had no personal knowledge of the background or
experience of DMS in this type of referendum
work. If there had been .difficulty from the
Branch's point of view with DMS going on the
list, Poole said that would have been the end of
the matter. He séid. however, thaﬁ he did not
know that DMS had already been considered by the
Branch to be inapprooriate as a polling firm, and
that if he had known he would not have pursued
the matter. Poole did recognize that such a
telephone call‘Erom someone in his position might

influence the decision-maker but maintained that

the decision-maker could still independently come

to his own decision. He explained that if he did
not respond to political or quasi-political
approaches made to him, there would be no reason
for the existence of his office. He felt an
-appropriate response was to contact the relevant
administrator and' to indicate support from his
office for a particular individual or company.

and that such a call of support would not

I TR




constitute interference. He said that he assumed
Hick would understand that the call was in the

nature of an inquiry and was not a direction.

Poole stated that he did not recollect any
conversations with the Premier concerning the
édministrative decisions or actions of the
Branch, or the officials to whom the Branch
reports, as bdistinct from conversations of

matters of a political or public policy nature.

It is the opinion of this office that such a call does
constitute inappropriate political interference with
administrative decision making. Given Poole's position
and its 1likely impact on administrative decision makers,
involvement by him in administrative decision making on
political grounds is inapprooriate. Whether an individual
is "on-side" is an itrelevant consideration as far as the

administrative process is concerned.

(7) Review of the Ministry's file involving the 1981
NPH apolication for which Giordano stated DMS had
conducted a referendum revealed the following

facts:




{a)

(b)

(c)

The applicant hired DMS to conduct a survey
(pre-canvass) before pre-clearance was
granted by the Branch. According to a memo
on the Branch's file (dated January 21, 1981)
"when applicants do this it is typically done

in the hove that it will affect our decision

on pre-clearance."

The practical effect of the fact that DMS did
an unofficial survey (which Giordano repocteqd
showed 66.19% in favour) was that the Branch

had no authority over the materials used or

the manner in which the survey was

conducted. Neither the ballots nor any other

material was ever submitted to the Braanch for

its review.

Pre-~clearance was refused, and the

applicant's appeal to the Minister was
disallowed. Subsequently on August 20, 1982,

Giordano wrote the Minister and stated:

My company, Delta Media Services Ltd.
has represented..(the applicant) E€or
the vast vyear concerning an application
for a licence for a NP to be located
at.l.l

R T
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Several times in the letter Giordano referred

to the apvlicant as nis "client".

(d) In a letter dated Augqgust 28, 1982 to the
Executive Assistant to the Minister, Giordano
again loboied for a licence to be issued to

his "client",

4The following conclusions have been reachéd:,~(1) DMS

never conducted a referendum under the auspices of the
dranch; (2) EBick should have known that DMS had never
conducted a referendum under the gquidelines of the
Branch and that DMS had never been on the Branch's
approved 1list; and (3) Hdick included DMS on the
8ranch's approved list as a result of a telephone call
from David Poole, and against the advice of his deputvy
Andersen and his own prior intentions. As such,
Hick's approval of DMS to conduct the referendum was
based on irrelevant considerations. It is recommended
that, in the exercise of administrative
responsibilities, the General Manager not allow

himself to be influenced by political considerations.
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b. Before the Field Work (March-April 21, 1987)

This section and the next two (i.e. ¢ and d) have been
compiled as a result of review of referendum materials
and interviews and conversations with many people, as

indicated.

Giordano hifed Barbara Mathisen to help him with the
referendum, He had first met her during the 1986
Pfovincial election campaign and she had been
recommended as very competent by a friend of
Giordano's. Her role was to be primarily that of
field supervisor; specifically, she was to Dbe
responsible for hiring the pollsters, training them,

preparing their kits and their maps.

Giordano placed a classified ad for pollsters in both
the Vancouver Sun and The Province on April 16, 1987.
(N.B. This is only 5 days before the polling was to
beqin on "April 21.) Barbara Mathisen's phone number
was given as the number for applicants to call.
Mathisen also placed an ad on a notice board at the

student employment centre at U0.B.C. She hired

directly three people whom she knew. Before all the
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pollsters were hired, she said that she was told by
Giordano that he also had one person, Dave Thomson,
who would work as a pollster. (Giordano differed on
this point, claiming that he thought Thomson had
answered the ad in the paper and telephoned Mathisen.

Giordano did acknowledge that Thomson telephoned him.)

Mathisen hirad 10 people to work as pollsters; with
the addition of Thomson and counting Mathisen also,
the total was 12. The training of the pollsters took
place in the office of Mathisen's father in the West
End. This was a convenient location as all pollsters
except Thomson lived in Vancouver. The oEEicesloE DMS
at that time were 1located in Giordano's house 1in
Tsawwassen. (During Ehe course of the referendum, DMS
relocated to Tilburvy Park where another business of

Giordano's, 'Quick as a Wink', was situated.)

The training session began at approximately 7:30 p.m.
and lasted for 2-3 hours. TWwo pollsters who were
unable to attend this meeting had been trained on the
weekend by Mathisen. The rewmaining pollsters, with

the exception o©of Thomson, attended the training
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session. (Thomson stated that he arrived at about
10:00 p.m. after evervone except Mathisen had left,
but Mathisen emphatically disagrees and has stated
that he did not attend at all.) At that meeting the
procedure to be Eolldwed by the ©pollsters was
outlined. The pollsters were given the material they
would need: maps of their assigned sedtions, blank
copies of' the Master Enumeration List sheets,
identification tags, information sheets, large manilla
envelopes in which to put the ballots, "Out-Left
Notice" cards, a list of quidelines, and an initial
allotment of 200 ballots. Mathisen recorded the
ballot numbers given out and said she 1left it to
Giordano to give Thomson all of his supplies. All
present signed declarations that they had no personal
interest in the outcome of the vote, or 1in the
business of the Knight Street Pub. Thomson said he
signed his at Giordano's house. DMS in 1its report
refers to these as "statutory declarations". While
‘the Ministry  quidelines do require statutory
declarations, the ones submitted by -DMS do not comply

with section 77 of the EVidence Act and so cannot

correctly be ‘called statutory declarations.
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The r2ferendum area was divided into twelve smaller
areas, 'A' through 'K'. Mathisen did} not do any
polling. Each of the remaining» 11 pollstefs was
responsible for one area. The thlfth area was split

into four parts and oolled by four of the pollsters.

Each pollster was responsible for contacting every
house in his assigned area. If the residents were at
home when the pollster called, their names were to be
entered on Master Enumeration List sheets (blank
sheets of 8 1/2"x 11" npaper Qith NAME, ADDRESS,
TELEPHONE headings across the too). The pollsters had
large manilla envelopes in which to carry the
completed ballots. At the preference of the
residents, addressed and postage-paid envelopes were
left so that the ballots could be mailed to DMS. If
no one was home, the address was to be entered on the
pollster's enumeration sheet and an "OUT-LEFT NOTICE"
(oLN) card left. In order to receive ballots, those
residents over 19 vyears would have to enter their
names and mail the card to DMS. The card was
addressed and the postage was prepaid. There was a
notice on the OLN cards that the deadline for receiot

at DMS was May 8.




Each pollster was given a map of his area. The map
showed individual lots but had no street addresses.

The boundary of the area to be polled was clearly

indicated. The pollster was responsible for filling

in the strset address of every house which he polled.

C. The Field Work {(April 21-27, 1987)

The field work of the referendum began on Tuesday,
april 21 and finished on Monday, April 27, 1987,
There was no polling on the Sunday. 92unlvy one pollster

worked on April 27. The pollsters began about 5:00
p.m. and finished polling at 9:00 p.m. They then met
outside a 7?Eleven store at the corner of East 57th
and Knight. where they handed over the manilla

envelopes containing the ballots to Mathisen or

Giordano. Some envelooes were sealed; some were not.
Some pollsters put their Master Enumeration Sheets

used that eveninq into the envelopes with the ballots;

some did not. Additional supplies were available from
Giordano; however, no record was kept of the ballots
subsequently issued to pollsters. Ballots hot used by
. one Dollster.éould subsequently be issued to anothet

pollster. Thomson was not present that Eirst




evening. Mathisen remembered expressing her concern

_about his absence to Giordano.

Mr. Jonn Bauer accompanied Giordano to the 7-Eleven
the evening of April 21 and mo;t subsequent evenings.
Bauer, a long-time friend of Giordano's, had agreed to
assist Giordano with the referendum. ’Hé was not

actively involved in the field work, but was to be

involved in the tabulation of ballots.

All the n©pollsters except one were finished on
Saturday, April 25. This last pollster also worked on
Monday, April 27. Mathisen attended at the 7-Eleven
every evening except one. Gigrdano did not attend one

evening and Mathisen delivered the ballots to his

Tsawwassen home.

After the conclusion of the field work, there were two
deadlines: May 8 for the receipt of OLN cards and
May 22 for the receipt of ballots. Before the ballots
were sent to the residence, Bauer said that the serial
numbers on the ballots were recorded at DMS on the OUN
card. wWwhen the ballots were returned to DMS, they

were stapled to the OUN card which the residents




had previously mailed in. Mathisen's only involvement
between April 27 - May 22 was to enter all the street
addresses from the pollsters' individual maps onto a
"master street map" of the entire referendum area.
She did thisl work in her aoarﬁment assisted by her
fiancee. According to Bauer, his activity during this
period was to put ballots received by mail into
safe-keeping and to handle the OLN cards. (As DMS had
moved from Giordano's home to the 'Quick as a Wink'
office, Giordano brought the mail to Tilbury Park €for

Bauer to deal with.) Giordano described this period

€from April 27 to May 22 as a "waiting period".

d. After the Field Work (April 28-May 22, 1987)

Giordano, in his report to the Branch at the
conclusion of the referendum, wrote: "A total of
fourteen (14) enumerators were used to canvass 12
enumerating districts within the referendum area."”

Mathisen knew of 12 (including herself); she said she

had no knowledge whatsoever " of any other pollsters.

’Ftom aApril Zé'to Mév 22, the two additional pollsters,

Deborah Morrison and Vincent Johnstone, were working

uﬁder* the' direction of Giordano. Morrison 1is bpub
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owner McRobbie's first cousin; Jonnstone is Morrison's
son. Morrison was interviewed twice; Johnstone could

not be located.

Morrison's‘ account is as follows: She had never
discussed with McRobbie her pub application. She
stated she learned of the application when she
attended a public meeting held at ‘Moberly School on
March 25, 1987. McRobbie spoke at this meeting but
according to Mortison, McRobbie neither saw nor sooke
to her. Subsequently Morrison read the ad in the
paper and responded to it, She had exverience from
her work with telephone numbers and recalled that the
number in the classified ad was a Delta phone number.
(Ia Eact it was not. Mathisen lived in West End
Vancouvef.) <‘She left her name and number with the
lady whoAansQered the phone. Giordano called her back

and told her that all the regqular pollsters' positions

had been Eilled but she would be ideal for

"call-backs" because she 1lived so «close to the

referendum area. (Yer residence was several houses

outside the boundary.)



Hérrison said that Giordano came to her home to
interview her and explain her job. He would telephone
her and relay a 1list of addresses and direct her
either to deliver ballots or to pick up ballots from
each address. Giordano supplied ner with the ballots
and she occasionally had extra ballots in her 'home.
The ballots which she picked up were all 1in the
pre-addressed envelopes. She keot these envelopes in
a large manilla envelope; Giordano and Bauer came to
ner hoine every evening to pick up the ballots. She
delivered ballots after the May 8 deadline for receipt
of OLN cards. She worked almost every evening from
the end of april until May 22. She was paid $500.00
in total. SsShe was directed by Giordano to about 10
addresses every evening - at some she delivered
ballots and at others she picked up ballots. She did
not know how Giordano got these addresses. Johnstone,
her son, helped her on only three evenings. Both
Morrison and Johnstone had signed declarations that

they had no interest in the outcome of the referendum.

Mathisen stated emphatically that she had no knowledge
whatsoever of either Morrison and Johnstone or this

"call-~-back”" system of Giordano's. Moreover she




mentioned that she had four extra names had any

additional pollsters been required.

Giordano's account agrees with Morrison's for the most
part. He stated that he had been told by other
companies of the need to have someone to do
"call-backs" and that was the reason he had hired
Morrison before the referendum began. He said that he
was not aware she was related to McRobbie., He said
that people telephoned him requesting ballots or
asking that their ballots be picked up. While he did
not mail ballots if the OLN card was received after
May 8, he nevertheless had Morrison deliver.ballo:s to
certain homes up until ¥May 22. He did not consider
this to be unfair as the people who contacted him wers
"smart enough to phone". He acknowledged that he left

ballots with Morrison without any attempt to record

their numbers.

e. Checking and Tabulating of Ballots by DMS

(May 23-June 12,1987)

According to both Bauer and Giordano, the manilla

envelopes containing the ballots were first opened



after May 22. First the pollsters' envelopes were
opened and those ballots were separated into YES and
NO piles. Then the ballots which had been "received
by mail" (which included those picked up by Morrison)
were similarly divided. There were now four piles of
ballots. Bauer began to check each ballot: this was
done by cross-checking the name, address. and phone
number on the ballot against the telephone directory,
the ‘"criss-croés" directory, and the pollsters’
enumeration sheets. Bauer entered the ballot numbers
- down ‘the left-hand side o0f the pollsters' sheets
adjacent to the correct addresses. A fifth pile of

spoiled ballots developed.

This was a slow process and after two days, Giordano
called Mathisen and asked her to come in to provide
additional helop. After a few more days, this system
of verifying ballots was abandoned for two reasons:
(1) it was very time-consuming, and (2) it was not
definitive: e.g. a married daughter and her husband
might be living with her parents and their names would
not be in either directory. At the same time the
process of checking the names and addresses on the

ballots with the entries made by the pollsters on
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their enumeration sheets and recording the ballot

number adjacent to the approoriate address was stopped.

Subsequently, tnhe ballots wefe counted. (Matbisen savys
she did not count; Bauer says she did.) Obviously
spoiled Dballots (e.g. unsigned, (neither or Dboth
preferences marked)}could be set aside but no systen
was in. place td ensure that ballots Qéféb not
duplicated or that  Dballots were returned from
addresses actually enumerated. Giordano staﬁed that
he "assumed" that Bauer had entered all the ballot
numbers on the pollsters' ’enumeration sheets. ‘This
had not been done. Bauer, Mathisen and Giordano all
worked on the colour-coded disversal map. A colored
dot (red or green) was Dlaqed on the appropriate 1lot
to reflect the preference of the voters at that
residence. A number was written on the‘coldred dot to
reflect the number of votes of that preference. After
reading the address on a baliot, reference would be
made to the "master street. wap" which Mathisen had
compiled. When the street address was found, the

cocresponding lot on the dispersal map was located and

the correct color dot applied. All aqree this was a

time-consuming and frustrating process as the dots



- 38 -

tended to fall off. Bauer stated the bprocess was
discontinued before being completed; Giordano's
account is that the map was completed. On June 12,
1987, DMs submittedv its report and all relevant

materials to the Branch for its review.

£. Ombudsman Investigation and Findings

(1) The report submitted by 5MS to the Branch states
thét 14 enumerators were used to poll 12 areas.
When first queried why thers were 2 more
enumerators than areas, Giordano answered that he
understood there had been ©problems with one
pollster and shé had been replaced and that some
of the oollstéké may have worked 1in pairs.
Mathisen revealed that she knew nothing of
Morri#on or Johnstone. Subsequently Giordano

described the "call-back" role.

(2) Of the 95 spoiled ballots, 56 were YES, 37 were
NO and 2 were unmarked. This was generally
consiétent with the overall results of the
reférendum. The percéntaqe,of valid YES ballots

was repotted by DMS to be 60.6%; the percentage




of spoiled YES ballots  was 66%. However, on
_closer examination there were some unusual
Eeaturgs about the svoiled ballots. 48 ballots
werev spoiled because Qhey were out-of-boundary.
The majority of these people had not been
enumerated by any of the pollsters. Spoiled YES
ballots were discovered in the names of Morrison,
Johnstone, Morrison's husband and 3 others at
Morrison's addfesé’ which was outside of the
referendum larea; Indeed, many of the spoiled
ballots were from Morrison's neighbourhood.
Several people from Morrison's neighbourhood
confirmed they had received their ballots from

Morrison or her husband.

Two YES ballots were spoiled because they were
from non-residents. In addition, 7 YES ballots
were spoiled because they were duplicates. The
48 out-of-boundary, 2 non-resident and 7
duplicate 'ballots total 57. None o©0f these
ballots represents the disenfranchisement of an
eligible voter (50 were not eligible and 7 had
already voted). Of these 57, 47 were YES
ballots. Of the remaining 38 spoiled ballots, 2

were unmarked, The 36 ballots remaining ballots
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were spoiled for various —reasons: unsigned,

illegible, preference changed. All these ballots

rapresent the preference of eligible voters. of

these 36, 27 were NO and 9 were YES (i.e. 75%

were Nb).
95 Spoiled Ballots
48 out of boundary
2 non-residents
_7 duplicates
57 no disenfranchisement
because not eligible to vote
Of these 57 = 47 YES - 10 NO
95

less 57
: remaining spoiled ballots from
eligible voters

less _2 unmarked

36

of these 36 = 27 NO - 9 ¥YES

Thirty-one spoiled ballots were €rom Dave

Thomson's area, and were spoiled for the

following reasons: 1 unmarked, 4 out-of-boundarv,

and 26 unsigned. Of the 26 unsigned, 17 were NO
and 9 were YBS. (i.e. 65.3% of the 26‘unsi§ned
ballots were NO). It 1is evident that the
majority of spoiled ballots from eligible votér§

were NO ballots.
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Thomson was hired directly by Giordano, He
admitted having missed the traininq gsession, and
as a result he may not have been certain how to
proceed. Review of his enumeration sheets
indicated that he had missed 24 houses in. his
area. How to explain the fact that 65.3% of his
snoiled ballots were NO and that 75% of all
spoiled ballots from eligible voters were NO?
Thomson said that he had not been counselled to
purposely spoil NO ballots. A - possible
explanation 1is that this ratio may more truly
réflect the overall preference of eligible voters
within4 the referendum area ‘at the time the

referendum was conducted.

The 5 piles into which DMS had sevarated the
ballots were labelled and sent intact to the
Branch. DMS also tabulated the ballot numbers in
each pile sepatételv and these were reproduced in
an appendix in its revort to the Branch. Setting
aside the 95 spoiled ballots, 4 piles remained as

follows: "
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YES NO TOTAL
a) Picked up by enumerator 506 536 1042
b) Received by mail 709 254 963

In other words, 48.5% of the ballots picked up by
enumerators were YES while 73.6% of the ballots
"received by mail" were YES. The 25% discrepancy
between the percentage of YES ballots picked up
by enumerators and the pe;centaqe in the
"received by mail" cateqory seemed to be an

anomaly.

The 963 }ballots in Jthe "received by mail"
category included ballots which had been obtained
as a result of sending OLN cards, ballots left at
residences by the pollsters and subsequently
mailed in by the residents, and ballots picked up

by Morrison in her "call-back" role.

Both YES and NO ballots "received by mail" were
reviewed to determine how many ballots had been

obtained as a result of OLN cards (the OULN cards

i
e
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were stapied to the ballots). Seventy-three OLN
cards were found; 5 of these were photocopies of
the OLN card rather than the original. 1In total,
134 ballots were attached to OLN cards. 91 of
these were NO Dballots; 43 were YES. While a
small sample, this percentage of 67.9% NO is also
at odds with the overall reported results of the

referendun.

in order to compare some of these results against
other referendums, this office consulted a
company which had been on the Branch's "approved"
list since 1984 ‘and has since conducted eight
referendums. Using data from three of these, the
averaqe‘ﬁércentaqe of people voting who chose to
mail in their ballots was 15.4%. (This includes
ballots received as a result of OLN cards.)

15.4% of the 2005 who voted in the Knight Street
Pub referendum vyields 'a figure of 309, The
reported total of YES and NO ballots "received by

mail"” is 963, i.e., 48% of all ballots returned.

In the experience of the consulted company, the

~ YES "received by mail" ballots tended to outweigh
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the NO "received by mail" ballots by a slight
margin, i.e. 2-3%,. This company found the
discrepancy in the Knight Street Pub referendum
(i.e. 48.5% YES by enumerator; 73.6% YES

"received by mail") unusual.

In theory, the polling process used by the
pollstérs during the field work between april
 21-27 was complete, If residents were home, the
required number of ballots were handéd over by
the pollster; if no one was home, an OLN card was
left and the required number of ballots could be
obtained from DMS. - Pre-addressed and pre-paid
envelopes accompanied the ballots. There was no
need for anyone to phone DMS either for ballots
or to have ballots. picked up. On all 8
referendums conducted by the consulted kcompanv,
the principal could not recall receiving more
than half a dozen telephone calls. The phone
“ number of DMS was not on the ballots and DMS was
not listed in the telephone directory at the
relevant times. Giordano said that the DMS phone
was connected on AaApril 29, 1987, and that the
phone number would have been available through

directory assistance shortly thereafter.
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Each of the 2100 ballots returned was examined by
an Ombudsman Officer. This examination led to
the discovery of mén? irfegularities. all of
which were found in the YES "received by mail"”

category, as follows:

(a) 9 ballots were found from addresses which did
not exist. This was confirmed with the City
of Vancouver. The pollster's notétion on his
enumeration sheet was "3 houses on Knight -
No Numbers - Under construction.” - The
pollster had entered "none" on his street map
where addresses were to be entered; this
notation was reproduced on the master street
map. It is important to note that these lots
did contain dots on the dispersal map.
(Reference would have had to be made to the
street map before the correct 1lot on the

dispersal map could be located.)
(b) 13 ballots were returned from one address.

There was one ballot in the name of each of

the following individuals:



i Deborah Morrison (First cousin to McRobbie)
ii) Morrison's husband
iii) Vince Johnstone (Morrison's son)
iv) Johnstone's girlfriend
v) Johnstone's friend
vi) McRobbie's and Morrison's grandmother
vii) McRobbie's and Morrison's uncle
viii) McRobbie's and Morrison's first cousin
{male)
ix) McRobbie's and Morrison's aunt
X) McRobbie's and Morrison's first cousin

(male)
xi) McRobbie's and Morrison's first cousin

(female))
xii) McRobbie's mother (Morrison's aunt)
xiii) Morrison's mother (McRobbie's aunt)
(These r2lationships were established through

testimony; they have not been independently

verified by our office.)

It is important to note that on May 31, 1983,
during the course of the Ministrv's
investigation, Deputy Minister Doney put the
names of all 14  ©pollsters to McRobbie,
including the names of Morrison and Johnstone.
In his memo to file dated May 31, 1988 on this
conversation, Doney Wwrote that he asked
McRobbie "if any of these individuals was a
direct relative of hers or if she knew these
people prior to the pub referendum being
conducted. She answered no to both questioas

with regard to all of the pollsters named.,”
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McRobbie's explanation to this office was that

‘Deborah Morrison and Vincent Johnstone were

known to her as Debbie Johnstone and Vince
Schmidt, respectively, and that she did not
recognize them as named by Doney. However,
Doney noted in his memo that McRobbie

volunteered the information that her cousin,

'Wendy  Martinello (Morrison's sister) was

involved  in the pre-canvass of the

neighbourhood.

It wWas Morrison's evidence that only two of

these people (her qrandmothér and her uncle)

actually reside at this address. Morrison and

her husband acknowledged their signatures as
did Johnstohe's girlfriend. Johnstone's friend
maintained that the signature of his name was
not his. Neither Morrison, her husband, or the
girlfriend could recollect any of the
circumstanceé of their signing the ballots. It
is significant to note that the pollster's
entry at this address was "not home",
Therefore, an OLN card would have been left.
Nohe of these 13 ballots was attached to an OLN

card. By the process of elimination, it seems
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likely that these ballots were part of the

"call-back" system.

Giordano stated that every validated ballot
would bear the 1initials of either himself,
Bauer, or Mathisen. The 1initials were an
indication that one of these three people had
checked the Dballot in sowme manner. The
9 ballots from the non-existent addresses all
bear Giordano's initials. The only 5 ballots
of all 2005 counted as valid which did not bear
any initial were Morrison's, her husband's,
Johnstone's, Johnstone's friend's, and
Johnstone's girlfriend's, all at Morrison's
grandmother's address. Giordano could offer no

explanation for this anomaly.

An unsigned YES ballot (picked up by the
pollster) which had a ﬁotation written on it
"Confirmed by CG" and which‘was counted, The
company consulted by this office indicated that
it would contact a resident who had omitted to

sign a ballot and give him the opportunity to

communicate his preference, However, fairness
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would demand a consistent approach. - There was no
notation on any otner unsigned ballots which had
been spoiled to 1indicate that any attempt had
been made to confirm them. Giordano has stated

that ne may have confirmed other unsigned

ballots, but he cannot remember.

Several instances of duplicated ballots (same
name and address) . These could have been

discovered easily if the system of entering the

ballot number against the aporopriate address on

the pollsters' sheets had not been discontinued.

Upon discovery of all of the above ballots, and
others which raised suspicions, the R.C.M.P. and
Ministry were <contacted. We continued 9our
investigation and conducted several additional
interviews. Subsequently, all original documents
held by this office were requested by, and handed

over to, the R.C.M.P.

It is concluded that the approval of the Knight

sékeet Pub Referendum results by the Branch cannot

be supported on the facts. It is recommended that
the Branch reconsider its decision approving the

referendun.
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6. BRANCH REVIEW OF DELTA MEDIA SERVICES REFERENDUM
REPORT (June-July 1987)

After tabulating the results of the referendum, DMS sent
its report, with appendices, including copies of the
pollsters' enumeration sheets, pollsters' declarations,
and master tabulation sheets, to the Branch €for its
review. The bailots and OLN cards were also sent. These
were received at the Branch on June 15, 1987. Receipt of
the documents was acknowledged by letter to DMS from Hick
on June 29. On July 7, McRobbie was informed by letter

Erom Hick that the referendum results had been approved,

A research officer conducted the Branch's review of the
referendum materials. He examined the spoiled ballots and
counted all the ballots. He found a slight discrepancy in
his recount of the ballots which brought thg percentaqge of
YES ballots down from 60.63 to 60.49%. He also questioned
some of the spoiled NO ballots, but calculated that even
if thesé had been counted, the referendum would still have
passed by 60.,33%, In his July 6, 1987 memo to Branch
management, the research officer referred to ;he category
of YES ballots "received by mail", yet the fact that that

category had more ballots than any other did not strike
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him as unusual. He also commented that of the 95 spoiled
ballots 56 were YES, 37 were NO and 2 had no mark. Of the
56 YES votes, 40 were outside the boundary. He did not
see anything unusual in this distribution or in the large
number of unsigned svoiled ballots. He concluded his memo
by writing that the DMS "report is an absolute model in
terms of its comprehensiveness, detail and quality."™ The
Branch contends that the quality of the DMS report was

superior to that of othe: polling cowmpanies.

The Brancha had a list of guidelines for companies
conduc-ing referendums. Two of these guidelines were as

follows:

l11. When the ballots are being counted, the residents
who have voted should be checked off the master
enumeration list to avoid any  possible

duplication.

14. Ballots received as a result of the Out-Left
Notice Card should be checked off the master

enumeration 1list in the same manner as other

ballots.



As mentioned earlier 1in this report, when ballots were
first being checked at DMS, the serial number of the
ballot was entered by Bauer down the left-hand side of the
pollsters' enumeration .sheets adjacent to the appropriate
entry. However, tnis process had been discontinued. It
was evident at a glance that there were nowhere near 2100
sucn entries. A count by this office revealed that only

1117 entries had been made,

During tne interview with the research officer, he was
asked why he had not been concerned about the fact that
ODMS had not complied with the Branch's guidelines. He
said that he was not aware of the existence of the

guidelines.

The research officer had only been working in the Branch
for about 2 months when he ‘reviewed DMS' referendum
report. Previously he had been involved in the Branch's
review of a referendum conducted in Sardis. (The review
was undertaken by the Branch after the receipt of numerous
complaints.) It was Branch management's responsibility to
ensure that the research officer knew what he was doing.
Given Hick's knowledge that, but for a phone call from

Poole, DMS would not have been aporoved to do the
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referendum, Hick ought to have ensured that this company
complied with the Branch's gquidelines. A minimal inquiry
would have revealed that the majority of. ballots in the
YES "received by mail" category had not been entered on
the pollsters' enumeration sheets and that the addresses
which appeared on many of the ballots had not been

enumerated by any of the pollsters.

In these circumstances, it is concluded that the Branch's
review of the referendum documents was negligent.
Negligence 1in public administration 1is the failure to
exercise proober care or aétention in the performance of a
public duty. It is recommended that 'standard procedures
be developed and applied to review all . referendum
documents effectively and that the Branch ensure that

staff have sufficient experience and direction to carry

out the task.

7. MINISTRY RESPONSE TO SUBSEQUENT COMPLAINTS

a. Dr. Mangal's 1987 letter (September-October 1987)

The Ministry's 1988 report ("An Investigation into the

Referendum for the Knight Street Pub") brought ¢to




light the fact that Dr. Mangal, a resident in the
referendum area, had originally complained to the
Branch in the fall of 1987. The research officer's
recollection was that Mangal had telephoned the Branch
in September 1987 and complained about irreqularities
in the referendum. Mangal wrote a letter to Hick
dated September 18, 1987. The letter was date stamped
as received on October 23. The original of Mangal's

letter was not in the Ministry file and could not be

located.

Mangal, in his letter, was sovecific about the type of
irregularities which he was alleging; however, he did
not provide .-any names. He also complained that the
disversal map wﬁs inaccurate. He requested that Hick

"look into the whole Plebiscite process".

The reseafch officer drafted three alternative
responses for Hick's consideration and signature. Two
of the letters declined to investigate Manqal's
complaints because the applicant had met the Branch's
requirements and considerable time had elapsed since

the referendum had been held. The third letter, which
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is the one Hick signed on October 30, 1987, contained

the following two paragraphs:

Nevertheless, given the seriousness of some of
the allegations raised in your letter, I am
instructing a further review of this plebiscite,.
The branch will communicate with vyou again,
either in the course of seeking specific
substantiation of those matters raised in vyour
letter, or to relay to you the conclusion of our
review, '

Mangal did not hear anything further from the Branch

until May 1983, after BCTV had confronted the

Minister with the allegations.

The position of the Branch {(as contained in the
Ministry's report) was that "Dr. Mangal was advised
to provide specifics befote further investigation
would be conducted.” The research officer stated
that to the best of his recollection, he phoned
Mangal after Hick's letter and requested specifics
from him. As Mangal never provided the specifics,
the Branch was unable to <conduct 1its review.
However, the research officer acknowledged that he
might be mistaken and that his telephone request for
more specifics may have been made during his phone

conversation with Manqal in September. - Mangal's
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September 138 letter could have been in response to
this regquest, as Mangal claims. This sequence 1is
supported by the fact that on October 30, the

research officer wrote Giordane. He enclosed a copy
of ¥Mangal's letter (with Mangal's' name whited out)
and asked Giordanb for a written response. Giordano
discussed the matter on the telephone with the
research officer but did not comply with the Branch's

request for a written response.

When Hick was asked why he had not ensured that the

Branch was taking some action after his October 30

letter to Mangal, he responded that his commitment
had gone "right out of his head" after he had
delegated to the research officer the responsibility

to Eollow up the matter.

Two other letters had been forwarded to the Branch by
the City of Vancouver. One letter, alleging that the

aranch had ignored certain Regulations when gqranting

‘pre-clearance to the Knight Street Pub, was received

at the ~Branchi on April 21, 1987, and is on the

"Ministry file. It was not replied to. The other

letter, forwarded by the City and received at the
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Branch 6n May 13, 1987, was an anonymous letter
raising concerns about Toigo's involvement and DMS;
Hick (on May 15, 1987) wrote the Office of the City
Clerk that Toigo was closely connected with the
Knight Street Pub application as he was president of
Whitbury Holdings, ’the company which owned the
prorerty on which the pub would be located. Blind
copies of.Hick's letter were sent to Toigo, Giordano

and David Poole.

In his October 30 response to Mangal, Hick committed
the Branch to conduct a raview of the referendum and
to communicate again with Mangal. Having signed this
letter Hick was responsible for ensuring that this

review occurred. His personal knowledge of the

irregular manner by which DMS had been included on
the Ministry's approved 1list <could only have
heightened this responsibility. In these
circumstances, Hick's failure to ensure follow-up
action constitutes negligence, in that he failed to

exercise proper care or attention in the exercise of

a public duty.
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Dr. Mangal's and others' 1988 complaints

(the Ministry's Investigation, May-June 1988)

When the public controversy arose in May, 1988 over
the conduct of the referendum and the issuance of the
licence for the Knight Street Pub, the Minister
instructed his devputy, Mr. Lee Doney, to conduct an
investigation into the allegations of improprieties.
The active investigation work was delegated to Hick,
and a lawyer from the Legal Services Branch of the
Ministry of Attorney Seneral, was iancluded. (He was
released of his solicitor-client privilege by the
Ministry so that he could reoly to the Ombudsman's
questions during the course of this investigation.)

Under their leadership, a group of Branch insvectors

'was involved in making the actual inquiries.

Administrative staff Erom the Ministry correlated and

evaluated the investigation results and wrote the

ceport.

The Ministry €focused its attention on the complaints
which it had received, which totalled 63 by a certain
cut-of £ date. An original list of 29 complaints had

been prnvided by Dr. Mangal to BCTV. He subsequently

M
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submitted an additional 1list of people alleging
irregularities in the referendum. Only 4 of these 63
were from people who had voted YES and their
complaints were the same as others: no ballots or
OLN cards, or not enough ballots, had been received.
26 of the complaints could be rejected outright as
ballots from the residents were found. In the
majority of the remaining complaints, the testimony
of the residents was in contradiction to the
"standard ooerating procedure" of the pollsters (i.e.
that if no one was home an OLN card would be left).
The Ministry termed these complaints "unverifiable"”.
Allegations from only 3 households were accepted.
One allegation of £forgery was referred to the
Ministry of Attorney General. The Ministry concluded
that the magnitude of error was not large enough to

warrant overturning the referendum.

This office has found notaing in its investigation of
the referendum process to indicate that during the
field work any of the pollsters selectively missed
houses, the residents of which were somehow known to
be opposed to the pub, or that there was any

intentional effort to leave fewer than the required




number of ballots. As a result, this office does not
take issue with the Branch's disposition of the 63

allegations.

Each of the 63 complaint files has been reviewed by
this office 1leading to the following observations.
In- order for Ministry staff to investigate each of
the complaints, it was necessary to review the
r2ferendum material: the pollsters' enumeration
sheets, OLN cards, and ballots. The Ministry has
explained that it maintained a purposefully narrow
focus. Any anomalies not directly relevant to the 63
allegations were not noticed or at least were not
mentioned in its report. For example: (case 46) a
resident complained that she had not received any
voting material. The Ministry in its repoct
commented that the pollster's enumeration sheet
contained a name and a telephone number at the
resident's address and therefore the resident had
been left a- ballot. The conclusion on the
investigation file was that the allegation was
unsubstantiated; the report concluded the complaint
was unverifiable. However, on the left-hand side of

the pollster's sheet adjacent to this resident's
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address was the clear entry of a ballot number,
indicating that a ballot had actually been received
at DMS from this resident. This office could not
locate this ballot. No mention of this missing
ballot was made in the Ministry report, or in the

investigation file.

When the fesearch officer was interviewed, he was
asked if he understood what the numbers entered down
thae left-hand side of the pollsters’ sheets
represented. He replied that he did not. It seemed
plausible that the Ministry had not mentioned the
missing ballot because no one there had understood
the purpose of the numbers on the left-hand side of
the pollsters' sheets, and therefore no one had

realized there was a missing ballot.

puring the course of the Ministry's investigation,
the research officer had. written a six-page draft
(entitled "Contextual Considerations in Interpreting
the Findings of the Ministry Review of the Knight
street Referendum"), which had ndt been included in
the Ministry's report. There were two references in

this draft to the notation of ballot numbers on the
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cannot be accepted. The Ministry's resbonsibility
was broader than simply verifying or rejecting
allegations. . The Ministry's conclusion that
complaints £rom only 3 households were verified
amounted. to the Ministry putting its stamp of
approval on both the process and the results of the
referendum. Yet the Ministry bhad narrowly focused
its attention on the 63 allegations, without noticing
or mentioning any other aspect of the referendum
process. The Ministry stated in its report (p.27)
tnhat "the methodology of the referendum company...was
adequate." The clear implication in this statement
is that the methodoloqy was investigated and found to

be adequate.

It was the inherent responsibility of the Ministry to

be thorough and exacting in the investigation of

- complaints concerning . its  past administrative

actions. In these circumstances, it is concluded

that- the Ministry failed to meet this standard,

Regarding . the whole of this Section, it is
recommended that the Branch develop and apply
standard procedures to ensure the timely and

effective investigation and resolution of complaints.




8. BRANCH GUIDELINES FOR FUTURE REFPERENDUMS

Section 10(3.1) of the Ligquor Control and Licensing Act

reads as follows: "A referendum may be carried out in a
manner regquirad by the general manager". The guidelines
in efEecE/du:ing the Knight Street Pub referendum had been
prepared in 1980. These represented a significant advance
from the previous process whereby the licence applicants
conducted their own polls. The development of standard
guidelines represented a formalization of the referendum
process, and the public expectation was created that it
would constitute an independent and fair public vote., It
is apparant that in the Xnight Street referendum, this

egfpectation was not met.

In the late summer and early fall of 1987, the General
Manager began an initiative to codify the Branch's
requirements to ensure uniformity and minimum standards in
the conduct of referendums. This initiative has resulted
in the release in July 1988 of the Branch's draft "Manual
for the Conduct of Refetendums". Although some of the new
guidelines have been implemented, they have not been

publicly released in their entirety.
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Development of these guidelines is a positive approach for
which the Branch is to be commended. It is the opinion of
this office that the guidelines could be further improved

by taking into account the following considerations:

- of prihe importance is the development by the

Branch of a 1list of relevant criteria against

which to evaluate a company which wishes to'

conduct a referendum;

- once a company meets those «criteria and 1is
acceptable to the Branch, then (providing there
is no conflict of interest with the particular
application) the aoplicant should be free to

engage the company of its choice;

- the Branch should state explicitly that any
involvement of a cowpany with any aspect of the
applicant's pre-referendum camoaién (i.e.
precanvass survey) would render that combany

ineligible to conduct the actual referendum;

- the applicant in its pre-referendum campaign

material shodld be required to include

o




information about the dates during ~which the
official referendum will be held and an
explanation of the limited purpose of - the
pre-referendum campaign. Such information may
nelp the residents to distinguish between the
pre-referendum campaign and the official

referendum;

- the Branch must ensure that the materials used by
companies are such that the referendum process
can be reconstructed and the results verified.
Both OLN cards and ballots should be numbered -
ideally with the same number. There appears to
be a distinct advantage to require companies to
use the same forms. While there may be a
financial cost to some companies, it is suggested
that the Branch phase-in a requirement that all

companies use standardized materials.

The key to ensuring well-done, independent and impartial
referendums is that the companies approved by the Branch
be companies of good reputation with a proven track
record. If this is the case, there will be no need for

the Branch to involve itself in such things as training of
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the ©pollsters or the opening of, or tabulation of
ballots. If the Branch makes its requiremehts known to
the polling companies, it then becomes their
responSibility to adhere to those requirements. Poor
performance should result in the removal of the company

from the B8ranch's approved list.

Following from the above discussion, it 1is recommended

that:

1. the Branch develop a 1list of criteria against which
to evaluate a company requesting  Branch approval to

conduct a referendum;

2. the applicant engage the company of its choice from
the approved 1list, providing the company meets all

other Brarnch guidelines;

3. the Branch require the applicant 1include in its
pre~-referendum campaign material information about
the dates of the official referendum and an
explanation of the difference between the

pre~-raferendum campaign and the official referendum; -

4. the Branch phase-in a requirement that all companies

use standardized material.




9.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Branch practices for
considering competing apolications within a
particular area be <clarified, made known to the

applicants and consistently applied.

It is recommended that, in the exercise of
administrative responsidilities, the General Manager
not allow himself to be influenced by political

considerations.

Iz is recommended that the Branch raconsider its

decision aporoving the refzrendum.

It is recommended that the Branch develoop and apply
standard procedures to' review all referendum
documents efEéctively and that the Branch ensure that
staff have sufficient exverience and direction to

carry out the task.

It is recommended that the Branch develop and apply

standard procedures to ensure the timely and

effective investigation and resolution of complaints.

-



6. It

a)

b)

c)

d)

is recommended that:

the Branch develoo a 1list of criteria against
which to evaluate a company regquesting 3ranch

aporoval to conduct a referendum;

the applicant engage the company of its choice
from the approved 1list providing the company

meets all other Branch guidelines:;

the Branch require the applicant include in its
pre-referendum campaign material information
about the dates of the official referendum and an
explanation of the difference betkeen the
pre-r2ferendum campaign and the official

referendum;

the Branch phase-in a requirement that all

companies use standardized material.
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